C ommit tee Ag en da

AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH
Wednesday, 3rd June, 2020
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Sub-Committee South, which
is a re-issue of the postponed meeting agenda of 25 March 2020, and will be held as a:

Virtual meeting
on Wednesday, 3rd June, 2020
at 7.00 pm.
Georgina Blakemore
Chief Executive
Democratic Services
Officer

Democratic Servicecs Tel: (01992) 564243
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Members:
Councillors J Share-Bernia (Chairman), S Rackham (Vice-Chairman), R Baldwin, A Beales,
R Brookes, G Chambers, S Heap, R Jennings, J Jennings, H Kauffman, A Lion, L Mead,
G Mohindra, S Murray, S Neville, M Owen, A Patel, C P Pond, C C Pond, C Roberts,
D Roberts, B Sandler, D Sunger and D Wixley

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE (VIRTUAL MEETINGS)
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is being filmed.
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the
Council’s published policy.
Therefore by participating in this virtual meeting, you are consenting to being filmed
and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or
training purposes. If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured
they should ensure that their video setting throughout the virtual meeting is turned
off and set to audio only.
In the event that technical difficulties interrupt the virtual meeting that cannot be
overcome, the Chairman may need to adjourn the meeting.
If you have any queries regarding this,
Communications Manager on 01992 564039.

1

please

contact

the

Corporate

Area Planning Sub-Committee South

1.

Wednesday, 3 June 2020

WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
1.
This virtual meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to
unmute before speaking.
2.

The Chairman will read the following announcement:

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such
third parties).
Please could I also remind Members of the Public who have registered to speak that
they will be admitted to the meeting at the appropriate time.
Please also be aware that if technical difficulties interrupt the meeting that cannot be
overcome, I may need to adjourn the meeting.”
2.

ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS ATTENDING THE COUNCIL PLANNING
SUB-COMMITTEES (Pages 5 - 8)
General advice to people attending the meeting is attached.

3.

MINUTES (Pages 9 - 16)
To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 26 February
2020.

4.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

5.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To declare interests in any item on this agenda.

6.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, requires that the permission of
the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, before urgent
business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda of which the
statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

7.

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN SUBMISSION VERSION - PLANNING
POLICY BRIEFING NOTE
A Planning Policy Briefing Note (March 2018) has been produced by the Planning
Policy Team to ensure that a consistent approach is taken to the provision of planning
policy advice for the District, particularly in relation to the Epping Forest District Local
Plan Submission Version, which was published on 18 December 2017.
The primary purpose of the Planning Policy Briefing Note is to inform the development
management process and to provide assistance for Development Management
Officers, Councillors, applicants and planning agents. The Planning Policy Briefing
Note is available at:
http://www.efdclocalplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/Planning-Policy-BriefingNote_Mar-2018.pdf
2

Area Planning Sub-Committee South

8.

Wednesday, 3 June 2020

SITE VISITS
To identify and agree requirements for formal site visits to be held with regard to any
planning application listed in this agenda, prior to consideration of the application.

9.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/1317/19 - TREVELYAN HOUSE, GOLDINGS
HILL, LOUGHTON (Pages 17 - 26)
To consider the attached report.

10.

PLANNING APPLICATION EPF/1680/19 - 30 YORK HILL, LOUGHTON (Pages 27 34)
To consider the attached report.

11.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/2162/19 - 202 HIGH ROAD, LOUGHTON (Pages
35 - 50)
To consider the attached report.

12.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/2486/19 - 5 STAPLES ROAD, LOUGHTON
(Pages 51 - 56)
To consider the attached report.

13.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):
Agenda Item No

Subject

Nil

Nil

Exempt
Information
Paragraph Number
Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least
24 hours prior to the meeting.
Background Papers: Article 17 - Access to Information, Procedure Rules of the
Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:
(a)

disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

(b)

have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
information and in respect of executive reports, the advice of any political
3

Area Planning Sub-Committee South

Wednesday, 3 June 2020

advisor.
The Council will make available for public inspection for four years after the date of the
meeting one copy of each of the documents on the list of background papers.
14.

REFER SIGN (Pages 57 - 58)

4

Agenda Item 2
Advice to Public and Speakers at virtual meetings of the Council’s District
Development Management Committee and Area Plans Sub-Committees
Are the meetings open to the public?
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend virtually if you are a speaker, or to view on
the Council’s website. Only in special circumstances are the public excluded.
When is the meeting?
Details of the date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and Members of the Committee.
Can I speak?
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the
day before the meeting, by telephoning the number shown on the front page of the agenda.
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak; you must register with
Democratic Services. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues.
Who can speak?
Three classes of speakers are generally allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a
group), the local Parish or Town Council and the applicant or his/her agent. In some cases, a
representative of another authority consulted on the application may also be allowed to
speak.
What can I say?
You will be allowed to have your say about the application, but you must bear in mind that
you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify
matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Committee members.
Speakers will be contacted just before they will be asked to speak by telephone by an officer
of the Council. If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Committee will
determine the application in your absence. Speakers should be following the meeting on the
Council’s webcaster to enable them to know when their item will be considered.
If you have registered to speak on a planning application to be considered by the District
Development Management Committee, Area Plans Sub-Committee East, Area Plans
Sub-Committee West or Area Plans Sub-Committee South you will address the Committee
virtually. This will likely be by phone at the appropriate time in the meeting when a
Democratic Services Officer will contact you. Therefore, a transcript of your representation
must be supplied in advance of the meeting to enable the Democratic Services Officer to
read this out on your behalf should there be a technical problem. Please email your written
statement to democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection?
Yes you can, but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained from Democratic Services or
our website https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should
be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with the application.

Page 5

Revised VM (May 2020)

How are the applications considered?
The Committee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen
to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’
presentations.
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or
his/her agent. The Committee will then debate the application and vote on either the
recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Committee. Should
the Committee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, it is
required to give its reasons for doing so.
An Area Plans Sub-Committee is required to refer applications to the District Development
Management Committee where:
(a)

the Sub-Committee’s proposed decision is a substantial departure from:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

the Council's approved policy framework; or
the development or other approved plan for the area; or
it would be required to be referred to the Secretary of State for approval as
required by current government circular or directive;

(b)

the refusal of consent may involve the payment of compensation; or

(c)

the District Development Management Committee have previously considered the
application or type of development and has so requested; or

(d)

the Sub-Committee wish, for any reason, to refer the application to the District
Development Management Committee for decision by resolution.

Further Information
Further information can be obtained from Democratic Services.

Page 6

Revised VM (May 2020)

Area Planning Subcommittee South 2020-21
Members of the Committee and Wards Represented:

Chairman
Cllr ShareBernia
Buckhurst
Hill West

ViceChairman
Cllr Rackham
Grange Hill

Cllr
Baldwin
Loughton
Forest

Cllr B
Jennings
Loughton St
John’s

Cllr J
Jennings
Loughton St
Mary’s

Cllr
Kauffman
Loughton St
Mary’s

Cllr Neville
Buckhurst
Hill East

Cllr Owen
Loughton
Broadway

Cllr Patel
Buckhurst
Hill West

Cllr
Sandler
Chigwell
Row

Cllr Sunger
Chigwell
Village

Cllr Beales
Loughton
Forest

Cllr
Brookes
Loughton
Roding

Cllr Lion
Grange Hill

Cllr Mead
Loughton
Fairmead

Cllr C C
Pond
Loughton
Broadway

Cllr C P
Pond
Loughton St
John’s

Cllr Wixley
Loughton
Fairmead

Page 7

Cllr
Chambers
Buckhurst Hill
West

Cllr
Mohindra
Grange Hill

Cllr C
Roberts
Loughton
Alderton

Cllr Heap
Buckhurst Hill
East

Cllr Murray
Loughton
Roding

Cllr D
Roberts
Loughton
Alderton

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES
Committee:

Area Planning
South

Sub-Committee

Date:

26 February 2020

Place:

Council Chamber, Civic Offices,
High Street, Epping

Time:

7.30 - 9.17 pm

Members
Present:

J Share-Bernia (Chairman), A Patel (Vice-Chairman), R Baldwin, R Brookes,
S Heap, R Jennings, J Jennings, H Kauffman, S Neville, M Owen, C P Pond,
C C Pond, C Roberts, D Roberts and D Wixley

Other
Councillors:
Apologies:

A Beales, A Lion, L Mead, G Mohindra, S Murray, S Rackham and D Sunger

Officers
Present:

G Courtney (Planning Applications and Appeals Manager (Development
Management)), R Perrin (Democratic Services Officer) and G Woodhall
(Democratic & Electoral Services Officer)

73.

WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the
webcasting of its meetings.

74.

MINUTES
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting held 29 January 2020 be taken as read and
signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

75.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(a)
Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor A Patel
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of
being the Commercial and Regulatory Services Portfolio Holder. The Councillor had
determined that he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the
application and voting thereon:


76.

EPF/2126/19 – 202 High Road, Loughton.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the SubCommittee.

Page 9

1

Area Planning Sub-Committee South
77.

26 February 2020

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN SUBMISSION VERSION - PLANNING
POLICY BRIEFING NOTE
It was noted that the Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version Planning
Policy Briefing note was available at:
http://www.efdclocalplan.org/wpcontent/uploads/2018/03/Planning-Policy-BriefingNote_Mar-2018.pdf

78.

SITE VISITS
It was noted that the following formal site visit was requested by members, and
agreed by the Committee, prior to the consideration and determination of the
remaining applications.


79.

EPF/1680/19 – 30 York Hill, Loughton.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/1680/19 - 30 YORK HILL, LOUGTON
APPLICATION No:

EPF/1680/19

SITE ADDRESS:

30 York Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1HT

PARISH:

Loughton

WARD:

Loughton St Johns

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:
DECISION:

Proposed two storey side and rear extension.
Deferred

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=625996

DEFERRED FOR SITE VISIT

Page 10

2

Area Planning Sub-Committee South

80.

26 February 2020

PLANNING APPLICATION EPF/2126/19 - 202 HIGH ROAD, LOUGTON
APPLICATION No:

EPF/2162/19

SITE ADDRESS:

202 High Road
Loughton
IG10 1ET

PARISH:

Loughton

WARD:

Loughton St Marys

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Change of use from A3 to A5 (Including Air Extraction &
Ventilation Details)

DECISION:

Deferred

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=628058

DEFERRED FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

81.

PLANNING APPLICATION EPF/2411/19 - 65 STAPLES ROAD, LOUGTON
APPLICATION No:

EPF/2411/19

SITE ADDRESS:

65 Staples Road
Loughton
IG10 1HR

PARISH:

Loughton

WARD:

Loughton St Marys

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Proposed installation of x3 no. replacement windows to
the front of the property.

DECISION:

Refused

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=629119

REASON FOR REFUSAL
1

The proposed development, due to the design of the replacement
windows, fails to take the opportunity to improve the character and
quality of the conservation area, contrary to paragraph 130 of the
National Planning Policy Framework, policy HC7 of the adopted
Local Plan and Alterations, and policy DM 7 of the Epping Forest
District Local Plan Submission Version (2017).

Page 11

3

Area Planning Sub-Committee South

82.

26 February 2020

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/3016/19 - 140-142 CHURCH HILL, LOUGHTON
APPLICATION No:

EPF/3016/19

SITE ADDRESS:

140-142
Church Hill
Loughton
IG10 1LJ

PARISH:

Loughton

WARD:

Loughton St Johns

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Application for Variation of condition 1 of EPF/2015/19
to enable a variation in delivery and waste collection
hours.

DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=631338

CONDITIONS

1

No deliveries or waste collections are to be made outside of the
hours 07.30 and 20.00 hours Monday to Saturday. No deliveries or
waste collections are to be made outside the hours of 16.30 to
18.30 on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

2

The use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers /
members outside the hours of 8am to 10pm on Monday to Saturday
and 10am to 4pm on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

3

There shall be no external loudspeaker systems provided within the
curtilage of the site. Any internal loudspeaker systems shall be such
that at no time would the noise emanating therefrom exceed 45dbA,
measured on the rear boundary of the site.

4

No access, either pedestrian or vehicular, shall be formed onto
Millsmead Way

5

The proposed development should be carried out in accordance
with the mitigation measures set in the noise report produced by
Acoustics Consultants Ltd dated October 2019, reference :
7855/FD.

Page 12

4

Area Planning Sub-Committee South

83.

26 February 2020

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/3061/19 - 1 FONTAYNE AVENUE, CHIGWELL

APPLICATION No:

EPF/3061/19

SITE ADDRESS:

1 Fontayne Avenue
Chigwell
IG7 5HB

PARISH:

Chigwell

WARD:

Grange Hill

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Proposed part single storey, part two storey side and
rear extension. Loft conversion with rear dormer and a
new front porch. (Revised application to EPF/2347/19).

DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=631558

CONDITIONS
1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2

The development hereby permitted will be completed and retained strictly
in accordance with the approved drawings numbers: 527/PL/00, 527/PL/03
527/PL/04 Rev A, 527/PL/05 Rev A, 527/PL/06 Rev A, 527/PL/07 Rev A
and 527/PL/08 Rev A.

3

Prior to preliminary ground works taking place, details of surface water
disposal shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance
with such agreed details.

4

Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development
shall match those of the existing building, except those stated on the
approved plans.

5

The window openings in the upper storey flank elevation shall be entirely
fitted with obscured glass with a minimum Level 3 obscurity and have fixed
frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the
window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

6

Access to the flat roof over the single storey extension hereby approved
shall be for maintenance or emergency purposes only and the flat roof

Page 13

5

Area Planning Sub-Committee South

26 February 2020

shall not be used as a seating area, roof garden, terrace, patio or similar
amenity area.
7

84.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, as amended, (or any other
order revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no window
openings shall be inserted in the flank elevation without the prior written
permission of the Local Planning Authority.

PROBITY IN PLANNING - APPEAL DECISIONS, 1ST APRIL 2019 TO 30ST
SEPTEMBER 2019
The Sub-Committee received a report regarding Probity in Planning – Appeal
Decisions 1 April 2019 to 30 September 2019. In compliance with the
recommendation of the District Auditor, the report advised the decision-making
committee of the results of all successful allowed appeals (i.e. particularly those
refused by committee contrary to officer recommendation).
The purpose of the report was to inform the Area Plans Sub-Committee South of the
consequences of their decisions in this respect and, in cases where the refusal was
found to be unsupportable on planning grounds, an award of costs might have been
made against the Council.
Over the six-month period between 1 April 2019 and 30 September 2019, the Council
received 56 decisions on appeals (54 of which were planning related appeals, the
other two were enforcement related). Seven appeals out of 54 were allowed (13%).
Broken down further, Committee reversals performed very well with only 2 out of 14
allowed (14.3%) and there was also a good officer delegated decisions performance
of 5 out of 40 (12.5%) allowed.
Out of the planning appeals that arose from decisions of the Area Plans SubCommittee South to refuse contrary to the recommendation put to them by officers
during the 6-month period, one appeal was allowed against decisions made and
three were dismissed. Out of 2 Enforcement Notice appeals, both were dismissed,
but only one was of relevance to this Sub-Committee.
During this period, there were no successful award of costs against the Council.
Whilst performance in defending appeals at 22.6% appeared to be modest, there
was no national comparison of authority performance. Members and officers were
reminded that in refusing planning permission there needed to be justified reasons
that in each case must be not only relevant and necessary, but also sound and
defendable so as to avoid paying costs. This was more important now than ever
given that a Planning Inspector or the Secretary of State could award costs, even if
neither side had made an application for them. Whilst there was clearly pressure on
Members to refuse in cases where there were objections from local residents, these
views (and only when they were related to the planning issues of the case) were one
of a number of relevant issues to balance out in order to understand the merits of the
particular development being applied for.
RESOLVED:
That the probity in Planning report covering the period 1 April 2019 to 30
September 2019 be noted.

Page 14

6

Area Planning Sub-Committee South

26 February 2020

CHAIRMAN

Page 15

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16

Agenda Item 9

E
S
R

O ak T ree
Cottage

24

9

Y
A
W

Epping Forest District Council
12

EFDC
Woodcroft School

The
Lodge
E
RIV
SD
FIR

Rosecroft

87

Mulberrycroft

76.8m
Allotment G ardens

5

Stable Cottage

1

90

98

94

96

92

The Gale Centre
Ho
ne
ys

uc
kl e

38
39

MO
NK
CH
ES

40

41

Co
tta
ge

TE
RC
LO
SE

10

37a

5
se
ro e
g
im
Pr otta
C

10
1
37c

tl e
yr e
M tag
ot
C

Trevelyan
House

SEYMOUR'S

35

1

33

LOWER ROAD

63.1m

24

1t
o6
(W Alm
hit
ak sho
ers
us
e
Ch
ari s
ty)

29
19

18

EFDC

2

Arewater G reen
Epping F orest
41

G oldings Hill
Evangelical

Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Application Number:

EPF/1317/19

Site Name:

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

Scale of Plot:

Trevelyan House Goldings Hill
Loughton Essex IG10 2SW
1:1250

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 17

56.4m

Church

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1317/19

SITE ADDRESS:

Trevelyan House
Goldings Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 2SW

PARISH:

Loughton

WARD:

Loughton St Johns

APPLICANT:

Trevelyan House Ltd

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Application for Variation of Condition 2:"completed strictly with
approved drawings" for EPF/2379/17. (Demolition of three existing
properties and associated buildings to be replaced with x 8 no.
dwelling houses, new access road, parking and landscaping).
Erection of 7 no. street lights accompanied by a lighting report.

RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=624325

CONDITIONS
1

The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos: FFK_300 Rev M, FFK_302 Rev C, FFK_301 Rev C,
Outdoor Lighting Report dated 21 October 2019 project no. 14565-1-D [Braemer],
14565-1-D [Braemer] Horizontal Illuminance (lux), DRG NO. 20653-08 A,
FFK_327A, FFK_002, FFK_311, FFK_310 A, FFK_304 B, FFK_303 B, FFK_302 C,
FFK_301 C, FFK_300 M, FFK_112 A, FFK_111 A, FFK_110 A, FFK_105, FFK_105,
FFK_104, FFK_103, FFK_102, FFK_101, FFK_100 D, Proposed Side Elevation
(1_East), 318 A, FFK_317 B, FFK_316 B, 315 B, FFK_314 A, FFK_313 A,
FFK_312, FFK_322 A, FFK_321 A, Proposed Front Elevation (1_North), FFK_320
A, FFK_331 A, FFK_330 B, FFK_326 C, FFK_325 B, FFK_324 B, FFK_323,
FFK_001 A

2

The development shall be implemented in accordance with material samples
approved under application reference EPF/0258/17 .

3

The development shall be implemented in accordance with approved surface water
disposal details under application reference EPF/0258/17.

Page 18

4

The development shall take place in accordance with approved details under
application EPF/0258/17 of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree
planting) and implementation programme (linked to the development schedule). If
within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any
tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed,
uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another
tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall
be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written
consent to any variation.

5

The development shall be carried out only in accordance with the approved Tree
Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring schedule in
accordance with BS:5837:2012 as approved under application reference
EPF/0258/17.

6

Measures contained within the flood risk assessment and management and
maintenance plan approved under application EPF/0258/17 shall be carried out prior
to the substantial completion of the development and shall be maintained in
accordance with the approved management and maintenance plan.

7

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation
scheme under application reference EPF/1764/17 unless otherwise agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.

8

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme
under application reference EPF/1764/17 and prior to the first use or occupation of
the development, a verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the
remediation carried out together with details of any necessary monitoring and
maintenance programme and copies of any waste transfer notes relating to exported
and imported soils shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval.
The approved monitoring and maintenance programme shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved timeframe for implementation, or within 3 months of
the substantial completion of the development, whichever is later.

9

In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above
condition.

10

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the details of levels
approved by the Local Planning Authority under application reference EPF/0258/17.

11

The Construction Method Statement submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority under reference EPF/0258/17 shall be adhered to
throughout the construction period.

12

All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 19

13

Prior to the first occupation of the development the access arrangements, vehicle
parking and turning areas as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided,
hard surfaced, sealed and marked out. The access, parking and turning areas shall
be retained in perpetuity for their intended purpose.

14

Prior to first occupation of the proposed development , the Developer shall be
responsible for the provision and implementation, per dwelling, of a Residential
Travel Information Pack for sustainable transport, approved by Essex County
Council, to include six one day travel vouchers for use with the relevant local public
transport operator.

15

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the boundary
treatments approved under application reference EPF/0258/17 must be
implemented.

16

The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved ecology
information and recommendations supplied in the letter dated 29th April 2016 by AA
Environmental Landscaping Limited.

17

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed second
floor front facing window opening on plot 5 (for the avoidance of any doubt the most
southerly terrace) shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass to a height of 1.5
metres and have fixed frames to a height of 1.8m above the floor of the room in
which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

18

The hereby permitted lighting shall be installed in accordance to the submitted
scheme detailed in the following drawings : Outdoor Lighting Report dated 21
October 2019 project no. 14565-1-D [Braemer], 14565-1-D [Braemer] Horizontal
Illuminance (lux), DRG NO. 20653-08 A, FFK_327A of decision reference
EPF/1317/19.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to
more than five objections which are material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to
The Constitution, Part Three: Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1,
Appendix A.(g))
Background (pre housing development on site)
The site is located off Goldings Hill with access predominantly achieved from Monkchester Close
and a small access further south serving the front elevation of the properties on site. The City of
London own this access. Easements over this road exist at the discretion of the Conservators of
Epping Forest.
To the south of the site is a small forested area owned by the City of London and an associated
pedestrian access and informal parking area serving the same. To the southwest are Grade II
Listed Almshouses, to the north of the site are a number of historic and well used allotments
(known as the Potato ground) and to the east is Monkchester Close. The Almshouses and these
allotments form part of the Baldwins Hill Conservation Area. The Conservation Area also includes
a narrow strip of land within the site adjacent to the southwest boundary.
Trevelyan House includes generous accommodation and a number of outbuildings, some of
which are in residential uses and some of which were used as a motor repair garage. Myrtle
Cottage and Primrose Cottage are traditional style cottages. The Conservation Officer has
previously visited the site to view the existing properties, however whilst they are older properties,
they have not been considered worthy of retention or any heritage status.

Page 20

The site has a steep gradient, rising towards the allotments from Goldings Hill, and a number of
trees on site which is of significant value. Positive discussion with Officers prior to application has
resulted in the proposed retention of a Monkey Puzzle which is of high landscape value.
The surrounding area has a residential character at low densities with various house types in the
area, but generally a two storey character prevails across an area with very differing ground
levels.
No part of the site or neighbouring land is in within the Green Belt.
Description of Proposal and History to Date:
The application submitted is to vary condition 2 (plan numbers) of the planning approval
EPF/2379/17. EPF/2379/17 was itself a variation of EPF/1578/16 which granted approval for 8
new dwellings with associated parking and garden areas. The houses approved and built on site
comprise of 4x4 bedroom dwellings and 4x3 bedroom dwellings forming a mix of terrace, semidetached and detached properties around a cul-de-sac.
The new development which has been built has an approved and implemented vehicle access
from Monkchester Close and a pedestrian access retained from the south of the site to Goldings
Hill.
There are 18 par
king spaces (10 for residents plus 8 visitor spaces) and a turning area for refuse vehicles. The
proposed gardens range in size from 62m2 to 138m2.
EPF/2379/17 (which was approved) sought variation of plan numbers approved under
EPF/1578/16. This was for the following:
1. Plot 1 – The rotation of the dwelling within its Plot, the minor increase in floor area
(approx. 10.5sqm) including ground floor infill addition and stepping of the ground floor
slab to better reflect the on-site ground levels.
2. Plots 6 & 7 – The proposed stepping of the ground floor slab to Plots 6 & 7.
3. Plot 8 – The proposal of a basement level and rear infill extension.
Description of current proposal:
EPF/1317/19 is for the variation of plan numbers (condition 2). It relates to the inclusion of street
lighting for the approved and built housing development.
There would be a total of seven street lamps which would be of the Braemar heritage luminaire
by DW Windsor with anti-glare shield fitted. The proposed street lamps would be 4.420m high
from the ground level.
Relevant history
EPF/2379/17 Application for variation of condition 2 'plan numbers' on planning application
EPF/1578/16 (Demolition of three existing properties and associated buildings to be replaced with
8 no. dwelling houses, new access road, parking and landscaping) FINAL DECISION
15-092017
Grant Permission (With Conditions)
EPF/1578/16
Demolition of three existing properties and associated buildings to be
replaced with 8 no. dwelling houses, new access road, parking and landscaping. FINAL
DECISION 28-06-2016
Grant Permission (With Conditions
Policies Applied:
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations
CP1
CP2

Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives
Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment

Page 21

CP3
CP6
CP7
HC6
HC7
H2A
H3A
H4A
DBE1
DBE2
DBE3
DBE6
DBE7
DBE8
DBE9
LL11
ST1
ST2
ST4
ST6

New Development
Achieving Sustainable Urban Development Patterns
Urban Form and Quality
Character, Appearance and Setting of Conservation Areas
Development within Conservation Areas
Previously Developed Land
Housing Density
Dwelling Mix
Design of New Buildings
Affect on Neighbouring Properties
Design in Urban Areas
Car Parking in New Development
Public Open Space
Private Amenity Space
Loss of Amenity
Landscaping Schemes
Location of Development
Accessibility of development
Road Safety
Vehicle parking

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK (FEBRUARY 2019)
The revised NPPF is a material consideration in determining planning applications. As with its
predecessor, the presumption in favour of sustainable development remains at the heart of the
NPPF. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF provides that for determining planning applications this means
either;
(a) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or
(b) where there are no relevant development plan policies or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless:
i.
ii.

the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken
as a whole

The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory status of
the development plan as the starting point for decision making, but policies within the
development plan need to be considered and applied in terms of their degree of consistency with
the Framework.
Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017:
On 14 December 2017, full Council resolved that the Epping Forest Local Plan Submission
Version 2017 be endorsed as a material consideration to be used in the determination of planning
applications and be given appropriate weight in accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF.
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF provides that decision-takers may give weight to relevant policies in
emerging plans according to:

Page 22

•

The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation,
the greater the weight that may be given);

•

The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

•

The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies
in the NPPF (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF,
the greater the weight that may be given).

In general terms it is considered that the Submission Version of the Plan is at an advanced stage
of preparation and the policies are considered to be consistent with the NPPF. As regards
unresolved objections, some policies within the Submission Version have more unresolved
objections than others. All of these factors have been taken into consideration in arriving at the
weight accorded to each of the relevant policies in the context of the proposed development listed
below:
SP1

Achieving sustainable development

DM9

High Quality Design

H1

Housing mix and accommodation types

T1

Sustainable transport choices

T2

Safeguarding of routes

DM2

Epping Forest SAC and the Lee Valley SPA

DM3

Landscape Character, Ancient Landscapes and Geodiversity

DM10

Housing design and quality

DM11

Waste recycling facilities on new development

DM16

Sustainable Drainage Systems

DM18

On site management of waste water and water supply

DM19

Sustainable water use

DM21

Local environmental impacts, pollution and land contamination

DM22

Air quality

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received
Number of neighbours consulted: 76
Responses received:
STABLE COTTAGE, WHITAKERS WAY, OBJECT:
This development will radically change the area and disturb views from houses on Whitakers
Way. This will interfere with the local area as a conservation area.
12 WROTHS PATH COMMENT (Comment about development which has been approved and
built not about lighting) his is green belt land, and these houses are 'growing ' by the day, it was
always going to be the case that if a developer was given an inch, they would then apply for a
mile. I strongly disagree with any additional land, ground or space being given to increase the
size of this development
8 MONKCHESTER CLOSE, OBJECT: We object to the light that has already been erected
outside the rear of 9 Monkchester Close. This was never on the original plan and has already

Page 23

been erected with no permission. This light will be directly outside the bedrooms of 8 and 9
Monkchester Close and we have already had our privacy compromised by the changes that have
been made and the removal of a protected tree. There is a light beside number 10 and also one
near the new houses and this is not needed. Lower lights were expected to be in place and have
already been put along the new wall. This is excessive for the areas and they have placed more
lights in this area that the whole of Monkchester Close for 10 houses.
5 MONKCHESTER CLOSE, OBJECT: We object to the type and number of outdoor lights on the
development. The tall lights outside no 8.9 and 10 Monkchester Close shine directly into the
bedrooms and living space of those houses. There are two street lights in Monkchester Close
which provide adequate lighting for 10 houses. The 7 lights seem unnecessary. Fewer, lower
lights would be more acceptable.
6 MONKCHESTER CLOSE OBJECT: Object to the type and number of lights proposed and
height
9 MONKCHESTER CLOSE, OBJECT: Object to the type and number of lights proposed and
height
10 MONKCHESTER CLOSE, OBJECT: Object to the type and number of lights proposed and
height
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL: NO OBJECTION to this application, but expressed concern that
low voltage lighting be used due to the close proximity to the forest to protect wildlife.
Main Issues and Considerations:
Design
There would be 7 street lights which would be heritage style lights with an anti glare shield. They
will have an overall height of 4.420m high. They will be evenly distributed throughout the cul-desac to avoid appearing clustered and incongruous when viewed from different angles along the
general street scene.
Impact of the street light on light pollution and neighbour amenity.
The Council’s Environmental Health team was consulted on the street lights to look at their
impact on light pollution. The proposed lights have an anti-glare shield to limit light pollution. An
outdoor lighting report has been submitted with the planning application which has been reviewed
by Environmental Health. No objections have been raised subject to the suggested conditions.
The proposed lights are of a slim line appearance and of a height which when not in use would
not cause harm to the outlook, privacy and light afforded to the inhabitants of neighbouring
dwellinghouses.
Impact of the lights on the Epping Forest
Streetlights are not uncommon near the forest. Roads such as Goldings Hill, Golding’s Road, Firs
Drive, Monkchester Close, Wroths Path, Stony Path and Baldwin’s Hill all have street lights and
are all located close to the Epping Forest.
Conclusion
The proposed seven street lights, subject to conditions outlined above, have been deemed to be
acceptable in safeguarding residents from light pollution by the Councils Environmental Health
Unit. The proposed lights are of a design and scale which would be appropriate and sympathetic
to their surroundings and street lights are themselves not uncommon along roads near the forest.

Page 24

The proposal complies with relevant planning policy and guidance and is accordingly
recommended for approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:
Planning Application Case Officer: Natalie Price
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564718
or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

Epping Forest District Council
W
AY

EFDC

42

12
40

YORK
HILL

24

20

5

1

2
a
38

38

36

5
9

30

Ashley Grove
27

EFDC
93

105
Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Application Number:

EPF/1680/19

Site Name:

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

Scale of Plot:

30 York Hill Loughton Essex
IG10 1HT
1:500

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 27

45.4m

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1680/19

SITE ADDRESS:

30 York Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1HT

PARISH:

Loughton

WARD:

Loughton St Johns

APPLICANT:

Mr Guvenc Topcuoglu

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:
RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

Proposed two storey side and rear extension.
Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=625996

CONDITIONS

1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2

The development hereby permitted will be completed and retained strictly in
accordance with the approved drawings numbers: 1906_LG_LS1 01, 02,
1904_LG_EE3 01, EE2 01, E01 01, PE1 O1 and PE2 01 & 1906_LG_G01_P01 Rev
02, P02 Rev 02, S01 REV 02, E02 REV 02 AND E03 REV 02

3

Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

4

The window openings in the south western flank elevation(s) shall be entirely fitted
with obscured glass with a minimum Level 3 obscurity and have fixed frames to a
height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and
shall be permanently retained in that condition.

This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be
determined by Officers if more than five objections are received (or in cases where less than
5 were consulted, a majority of those consulted object) on grounds material to the planning
merits of the proposal (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part 3: Scheme of Delegation to Officers
from Full Council).
Description of Site:
Semi-detached dwelling on narrow site, opposite triangular green just north west of the
junction of Queens Road and York Hill, Loughton. The site falls within York Hill Conservation
Area and forms part of a frontage of mostly Victorian dwellings. There is a narrow rear access
lane serving the application site and neighbouring properties including a terrace of properties
in Forest Way to the rear.

Page 28

Description of Proposal:
Proposed two storey side extension measuring 1.2m wide, 3.7m deep, 7.6m high (max)
reducing to 7.2m (due to the land rising to the rear of the site) and eaves height 4.3. The
extension would provide an extended kitchen/dining room and at first floor level provides an
extended bedroom with en-suite. The proposed materials are yellow stock brick to match
existing, plain clay roof tiles to match existing, and timber framed windows painted white and
white oak frame doors to the rear of the site.
Relevant History:
EPF/0623/14:- Two storey rear extension. Granted Permission 16.05.2014
The above application was approved by Planning Committee South on the 14th May 2014.
Planning Policy:
Development Plan Context
Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006)
Section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning
applications should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan currently comprises the Epping
Forest District Council Adopted Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006).
The following policies within the current Development Plan are considered to be of relevance
to this application:
CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
DBE10 Residential Extensions
HC6 & HC7 Development within Conservation Areas
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019)
The revised NPPF is a material consideration in determining planning applications. As with its
predecessor, the presumption in favour of sustainable development remains at the heart of
the NPPF. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF provides that for determining planning applications this
means either;
a) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or
b) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless:
i.
the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or
ii.
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken
as a whole
The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory status
of the development plan as the starting point for decision making, but policies within the
development plan need to be considered and applied in terms of their degree of consistency
with the Framework.

Page 29

Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version (LPSV) (2017)
Although the LPSV does not currently form part of the statutory development plan for the
district, on 14th December 2017 the Council resolved that the LPSV be endorsed as a
material consideration to be used in the determination of planning applications.
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF provides that decision-takers may give weight to relevant policies
in emerging plans according to:




The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation,
the greater the weight that may be given);
The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and
The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies
in the NPPF (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF,
the greater the weight that may be given).

The LPSV has been submitted for Independent Examination and hearing sessions were held
on various dates from February 2019 to June 2019. On the 2nd August, the appointed
inspector provided her interim advice to the Council covering the substantive matters raised
at the hearing and the necessary actions required of the Council to enable her to address
issues of soundness with the plan without prejudice to her final conclusions.
The following policies in the LPSV are considered to be of relevance to the determination of
this application, with the weight afforded by your officers in this particular case indicated:
Policy
SP1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
DM7 Heritage Assets
DM8 Heritage at Risk
DM9 High Quality Design
DM10 Housing Design and Quality

Weight afforded
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant

Summary of Representations:
Number of neighbours consulted: 7
Site notice posted: Yes
Amended plans were received and a reconsultation took place. The majority of the below
responses were to the original submission.
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – Objection – on the grounds that it is overbearing due to
bulk, mass and height and was out of keeping with the street scene and conservation area.
The first floor terrace would cause overlooking and be detrimental to the amenity and privacy
of the neighbours. A member of the Committee would not be willing to attend an Area
Planning Sub-Committee South meeting, having nothing further to add.
Neighbours Responses:
THE HILLS AMENITY SOCIETY: - objection – the only alterations were to remove the
balcony to the rear; there are no measurements on the proposed plans, and next door no.32
is not mentioned on these proposed plans hence it is difficult to gauge what impact they
would have. The properties are original Edwardian cottages this proposal is completely out of
keeping with the attached property. Large rear window will affect the privacy of neighbours
living in Ashley /Grove and Forest Way.

Page 30

2 FOREST WAY: - Objects to the planning application, the gardens at Forest Way are very
small. If this is approved then I would lose privacy as the development would overlook my
property.
4 FOREST WAY: - Objects to the proposal on the following two grounds: Loss of privacy –
across the whole house and garden, especially the kitchen and bedrooms and Massing –
making the area feel very crowded and built upon, particularly due to the roof extension
becoming overbearing from our position and making us feel hemmed in.
32 YORK HILL: - Objects the images clearly demonstrate how doctored the presentation of
the computer render on page 7 of the Design Access Statement which accompanied the
planning application for the proposed two storey rear side extension and roof terrace at 30
York Hill.
9 ASHLEY GROVE: - objects to the proposal, the size of the rear extension would be
intrusive and block my outlook; cause loss of light from my property; design and scale of the
proposal appears to be out of character with its surroundings and the Conservation Area.
Concerned that the foundations of the proposed new building would affect the boundary wall
between our two properties. The previous planning application, which has now lapsed, was
for a side extension, not a rear extension. This current proposal, which includes a rear
extension, would be prominent in the back garden of No. 30 and alter the design of this one
of a pair of houses.
LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION PLANS GROUP: - We object to this application,
which appears to be an over-development out-of-keeping with this Conservation Area, and
with neighbouring properties. We are also concerned about the adverse effects on the privacy
of residents of neighbouring properties which would be created by the first floor.
However, if the District Council is minded to approve the application, we ask for conditions as
follows:
 to provide suitable landscaping
 to restrict demolition and building work hours to the Council’s usual standard hours
 to require wheel-washing equipment on-site
 to restrict vehicles to those of a size suitable for the roads leading to the site.
Application History:
A scheme for a two storey side extension was granted permission with conditions at
Planning Considerations:
Since the original submission the proposed plans have been amended following advice from
officers. The alterations are as follows:



The 0.7m deep ground floor single storey rear extension and the green roof have been
removed.
The proposed roof height of the proposed extension has been reduced by 0.9m.
The floor to ceiling window openings to the side elevation at ground floor and first floors
have been removed and revised to similar window openings to the existing.

The amended proposal remains the same as that previously approved under EPF/0623/14 in
regards to the two storey side extension, there are however some alterations to the
fenestration to the rear wall and flank wall.

Page 31

Character and Appearance
The key considerations in this case relate to design and appearance, impact upon the
conservation area, and on neighbouring amenity.
The roof of the extension would adopt the same roof pitch and height as the ridge of the
original rear projection and the proposed materials are to be in keeping with the existing
dwelling. In terms of design and scale the proposed extension is considered to be
sympathetic to the character and appearance of the property.
The extension would extend from the rear of the property and finish flush with the original two
storey rear projection to the north eastern side of the property, due to this positioning the
proposed extension to the rear of the property would have limited public views from the street
and therefore would not impact the character and appearance of the street scene.
Since the proposal is not almost identical to that previously approved under EPF/0623/14,
which was deemed to be appropriate, it is still considered that this extension is acceptable
within the conservation area.
Impact on neighbouring amenity.
The proposed extension would be sited on the common boundary with No.9 Ashley Grove.
The extension would have little impact on that property since there are no windows in the
flank wall of No.9 directly opposite to the proposed addition. The proposal does not extend
beyond the rear wall of No.9 and therefore does not restrict light or views from its rear facing
windows. A new window in the flank wall of No.30 should not create any overlooking although
it might be precautionary if this were obscure glazed.
The proposal would have no impact to the attached neighbour at no. 32 as the proposed
extension would not extend beyond the existing rear projection that is along the boundary
with nio.32.
The proposal would be located 10m from the rear wall of no 2 Forest Way, there would be no
impact in terms of overlooking as there are no additional windows proposed to the rear
elevation at first floor level, and even if this was the case these windows would be no different
to the existing rear windows at the property are surrounding neighbouring properties at nos. 9
Ashley Grove and 32 York Hill.
Consent was previously granted for an almost identical extension to this in 2014, however
has now expired. Nonetheless the previous extension was assessed with regards to the
impact on neighbouring amenities and deemed to be acceptable. There is no change in
circumstance that alters this decision.
Objections Addressed
Although this is a small site any loss of rear amenity space due to the extension will be
minimal and this proposal does not amount to overdevelopment. The only practical drawback
to the proposal will be lack of access during construction. Although there is a very narrow rear
access lane, and it will be important to neighbours that this is not blocked at any time,
unfortunately this is not considered to be a material planning consideration since it would
relate to a legal matter with regards to rights and access and easement.

Page 32

Conclusion:
The proposal is a small, well designed addition that respects the character and appearance of
the house and the quality of the surrounding Conservation Area and would not detrimentally
impact on the amenities of neighbours. Due to the amended plans the proposal is almost
identical to the planning permission that was granted consent in 2014 under EPF/0623/14. As
such the proposal complies with relevant planning policy and consequently is recommended
for approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:
Planning Application Case Officer: Natalie Price
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564718
or if no direct contact can be made please email:
contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

Epping Forest District Council

RO
HI
GH

11

21
2

21
4

21
62
18

16

22
0

EFDC
RO
AD

El Sub Sta

20
4t
o2
10

CL
IFT
ON

34.4m

20
2

JA
CK
SO
NA
LL
EY

200

6

4

EFDC
TCB

Ce
ntr
ic

1

Pa
ra
de

22
7

El
Su
bS
ta

TCBs
22
5

Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Application Number:

EPF/2162/19

Site Name:

202 High Road Loughton IG10 1ET

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

Scale of Plot:

1:500

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 35

APPLICATION No:

EPF/2162/19

SITE ADDRESS:

202 High Road
Loughton
IG10 1ET

PARISH:

Loughton

WARD:

Loughton St Marys

APPLICANT:

McDonald’s Restaurants Ltd

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Change of use from A3 to A5 (Including Air Extraction &
Ventilation Details)

RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=628058

CONDITIONS
1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2

The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings numbers: P19-044-01 Rev A, P19-044-02 Rev A, P19-044-06
Rev E, P19-044-105 Rev A and 8382 M 1010 B.

3

Prior to the occupation of the unit, a refuse collection plan shall be submitted to and
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, and the use shall thereafter be
operated in accordance with the approved details.

4

The Extraction and Ventilation System shall be fully installed and operational prior to
the use hereby permitted first commencing and thereafter shall be maintained in
perpetuity strictly in accordance with the Environmental Noise Assessment (Project
Ref: 7147-Loughton | Rev: 0 | 25th June 2019), Odour Control Assessment (Rev 00,
June 2019), P19-044-105 Rev A and 8382 M 1010 B.

5

The A5 use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers / members outside the
hours of 08:00 to 23:00 Sunday to Thursday and 08:00 to 23:30 Friday and
Saturday.

6

No service deliveries or waste collection shall be made to or from the site outside
the hours of 17:00 - 23:00 Monday to Sundays (Including Public/Bank Holidays)

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval
contrary to an objection from a Local Council and at least one non-councillor resident, on
planning grounds material to the application (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part 3:
Scheme of Delegation to Officers from Full Council).
The application was deferred from Area Plans South Sub-Committee held on the 26th
February 2020 as additional information was requested by Members. The questions
raised at the previous Committee are outlined and addressed below;

Page 36

1. Can McDonalds influence where the Uber Eats drivers and riders park?
Since Uber Eats is a third party business not operated by the applicant and serves a
number of A5 takeaways within the local area it cannot be controlled through planning
conditions. However the following information below:
The unit previously operated as a Chinese Restaurant with Takeaway for approximately
26 years. This operation included a number of dispatches from the restaurant for home
delivery. The proposal is therefore not proposing an entirely new entity to this location.
This would have continued should the Chinese Restaurant not have ceased to operate.
The delivery drivers are from third party operators. Each driver is entitled to use public
parking available, as were drivers for the Chinese Restaurant, as are delivery drivers
offering similar services from a number of similar operators throughout Loughton High
Street.
All Uber Drivers are required to uphold the standards expected. [A copy of the policy
setting out these standards has been submitted as part of this response and is
included at the end of this report]. These standards include parking safety, avoiding
blocking any entrances and obeying traffic and parking laws.
Based on the figures obtained from similar units operating across the wider London area
there would be up to 1 cycle every 6 minutes and 1 moped every 8-9 minutes. The
courier duration of stay on-site should be very low. It is expected that this would be 1-2
minutes including time taken to park their bicycle/scooter, walk to the entrance, collect
the food and go back to their bicycle/scooter.
There would likely be only one cycle and one moped at the restaurant at any one time.
Designated moped/motorcycle parking is available on the High Street, the other side of
the adjacent traffic lights. Cycle stands are available directly opposite the unit.
McDonald’s and Uber are in constant communication with regards drivers and the
operational partnership. Messages and instructions can be relayed from McDonald’s
management to all Uber Drivers who are known to deliver from a certain location.
2. What is McDonalds policy on consistent littering problems, anti-social
behaviour and general disturbance?
As stated by the presenting officer at the previous meeting, the matters related to
parking, littering, anti-social behaviour and general disturbance have been addressed in
the report and are outside planning control and difficult to enforce. Many of these matters
are controlled by other legislation, such as Environmental Health.
However, as the building is owned by the Council the following clause (Clause 5.9 (b)) is
included as part of the lease:
“They are not to do anything on the premises that will be of any nuisance or
cause danger, injury or damage to the Landlord or its’ tenants or any
neighbouring owners and occupiers”.
Therefore, if there is a persistent problem emanating from the operation of the unit, then
there are other powers outside the planning regime, which the Council as the Landlord
can explore to control these matters.

Page 37

3. How would the site accommodate the proposed staffing numbers?
Concerns were raised about the number of staff proposed and the inconsistency
between what is submitted within the application form and what is stated within the
report. The applicant has clarified the following:
The number of staff proposed (35 Full-time & 30 Part-time) will not all be on site at one
time due to shift patterns. The unit is intended to operate from 08:00 – 23:00 (Sunday –
Thursday) and 08:00 – 23:30 (Friday – Saturday). As such, the number of staff on the
premise will vary due to shift patterns which are orchestrated to successfully operate the
unit during the busier and quieter periods.
4. Why is this solely a takeaway business?
The proposal is for an A5 takeaway and therefore must be assessed and considered
solely as proposed. The business model or decision to apply for a sole A5 use here (as
opposed to an A5/A3 use) is not a material planning consideration and a decision must
be made on whether the proposed use is acceptable in this location and not whether any
other use or business model would be preferred.
Questions were raised as to whether the proposed use would be better served elsewhere
(such as on a commercial estate). This unit is within a designated town centre and A5
takeaways are considered appropriate town centre uses. Again the business decision to
locate the use in this location over other, potentially less favourable, options is not a
material planning consideration in this application.
5. Can McDonalds provide any onsite facilities for hygiene?
This is largely a business decision and is covered by separate legislation and therefore is
not considered to be a material planning consideration. The agent has confirmed that
McDonalds will provide appropriate facilities to comply with hygiene requirements under
the relevant legislation.
6. What is the percentage of deliveries to walk in customers?
The Agent has confirmed that it is anticipated that 70% of business would come from
customers physically visiting the site and 30% of business would be deliveries.
7. Impact on the Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation (EFSAC)
In terms of the impact on the EFSAC, which in this instance relates to just impacts from
air pollution, the key consideration is that the proposed development seeks to change
from an existing A3 (Restaurant) use to an A5 (Hot Food Takeaway). Based on the likely
traffic movements from both us classes it is considered that any impact on the EFSAC as
a result of the proposed change of use would be neutral.
The previous report has been reproduced below:
Site and Surroundings
The site is a vacant A3 restaurant premises (including a takeaway element) named Pak
Choi within the Loughton Town Centre and designated primary retail frontage. The
application premises comprise the ground and first floor of a continuous two/three storey
purpose-built building with a long part two/part single storey rear element within a block
fronting Loughton High Road. The upper floor flat, which is contained within the second
floor, is accessed from the rear of the site via a staircase and pathway over the two-

Page 38

storey section of the rear element, which also provides access to the other adjoining flats
at upper floors in the block. To the rear of the building is a car park and beyond that
Clifton Road properties. The building is not listed nor is it within a Conservation Area.
The A3 use ceased in August 2019 and the premises has remained closed since.
Proposal
The proposal is for change of use from A3 (restaurant) use to A5 (Hot food take away)
use to provide for a McDonalds takeaway. The proposal is designed with a limited
Customer zone on the ground floor which would take up approximately a third of the total
ground floor area (including the kitchen and ancillary areas to the rear – chiller, goods lift
and storage). On the first floor of the building is a plant room, crew room, stock room and
conveniences (it should be noted the first floor of the previous restaurant/take away use
comprised the kitchen, chiller and freezer and ancillary rooms).
The proposed opening hours are from 08:00 – 23:00 Sunday to Thursday and 08:00 –
23:30 Friday and Saturday. The accompanied planning statement states that approx. 65
Full-time and Part-time staff (35 full time and 30 part time) would be employed at this
site.
Relevant Planning History
CHI/0003/68 - Use of shop for fried fish, use of 1st floor as restaurant & installation of
shop front – Approved
EPF/2124/03 - Re-locate the external flue, alteration to front facade on ground floor level,
new projecting entrance canopy to restaurant – Approved
EPF/1622/19 - Proposed new shopfront. The installation of a digital window poster sited
behind the shopfront glazing and new plant equipment to the roof with alterations to the
rear elevation – Approved July 2019
EPF/1623/19 - Proposed installation of x 1 no. fascia sign, x 1 no. projecting sign, x 1 no.
window decal and x 1 no. LCD digital window poster – Approved July 2019?
Development Plan Context
Local Plan and Alterations (LP) (1998 & 2006)
Section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning
applications should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan currently comprises
the Epping Forest District Council Adopted Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006)
The following policies within the current Development Plan are considered to be of
relevance to this application:
CP1
TC1
TC3
DBE2

Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives
Town Centre Hierarchy
Town Centre Function
Effect on Neighbouring Properties

National Planning Policy Framework (Framework) (2019)
The Framework is a material consideration in determining planning applications. As with
its predecessor, the presumption in favour of sustainable development remains at the
heart of the NPPF. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF provides that for determining planning

Page 39

applications this means either;
a) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development
plan without delay; or
b) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting
permission unless:
i.
the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed; or
ii.
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF
taken as a whole
The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory
status of the development plan as the starting point for decision making, but policies
within the development plan need to be considered and applied in terms of their degree
of consistency with the Framework.
In addition to paragraph 11, the following paragraphs of the NPPF are considered to be
of relevance to this application:
Paragraph
Paragraph
Paragraphs
Paragraph

80
85
91 and 95
127

Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version (LPSV) (2017)
Although the LPSV does not currently form part of the statutory development plan for the
district, on 14th December 2017 the Council resolved that the LPSV be endorsed as a
material consideration to be used in the determination of planning applications.
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF provides that decision-takers may give weight to relevant
policies in emerging plans according to:




The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);
The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given);
and
The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the NPPF (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in
the NPPF, the greater the weight that may be given).

The LPSV has been submitted for Independent Examination and hearing sessions were
held on various dates from February 2019 to June 2019. On the 2nd August, the
appointed inspector provided her interim advice to the Council covering the substantive
matters raised at the hearing and the necessary actions required of the Council to enable
her to address issues of soundness with the plan without prejudice to her final
conclusions.
As the preparation of the emerging Local Plan has reached a very advanced stage,
subject to the Inspector's Advice regarding the need for additional Main Modifications
(MMs), significant weight should be accorded to LPSV policies in accordance with
paragraph 48 of Framework. The following table lists the LPSV policies relevant to the

Page 40

determination of this application and officers' recommendation regarding the weight to be
accorded to each policy.

Policy
SP1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
DM9 High Quality Design
E2 Centre Hierarchy/Retail Policy
P2 Loughton

Weight afforded
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant

Summary of Representations
Number of neighbours consulted: 36. 11 response(s) received
Site notice posted: Yes
6 COLSON GARDENS, 69 BURNLEY DRIVE, 2 CLIFTON ROAD, 204 HIGH ROAD,
164 FOREST ROAD, LRA PLANS GROUP and 3 EMAIL ADDRESSES ONLY –
Objections – Summarised as:





Highway safety - parking concerns/congestion/deliveries;
Litter;
Anti-social behaviour; and
Noise and smell disturbance.

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – The Committee OBJECTED to this application on the
grounds that the change of use from A3 to A5 would attract a higher level of traffic to this
area, especially at night.
The noise pollution created by the extra traffic, in particular motorbikes used for home
deliveries would be detrimental to the amenity of neighbouring residents in Clifton Road,
Forest Road and those living above the shops in the High Road and Centric Parade.
A takeaway food outlet of this nature, of which there are already a sufficient number in
the locality, would create excessive litter for the High Road and surrounding areas,
particularly Jackson Alley This problem would also have a harmful effect on the amenity
of neighbouring residents.
The subsequent increase in traffic pollution caused by this proposal would create a
detrimental impact on the SAC (Special Area of Conservation), which would be further
exacerbated by customers who consumed the takeaway food in the nearby forest and
then discarded their rubbish.
Members considered it would be preferable for the usage to remain A3 with some A5,
and that operating times should be outlined. The Committee recommended that the
outlet should not be allowed to open late at night to protect nearby residents from noise
disturbance and public nuisance issues which these types of establishments commonly
attract.
The Chairman of the Committee confirmed she would be willing to attend an Area
Planning Sub-Committee South meeting if required to do so.
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH – No comments

Page 41

Re-consultation
The application was amended in January 2020 to include the fume extraction system and
plant (located to the roof of the single storey element of the building) previously approved
in July 2019 along with a new shopfront and alterations to the rear.
Further comments were received as follows:
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH – No comments
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – No objection to extraction system, but re-iterated above
objections to the change of use
4 & 15 CLIFTON ROAD, LRA, 6 COLSON ROAD & 1 EMAIL ADDRESS ONLY – Reiterated concerns raised previously with the addition of Healthy Eating.
Planning Considerations
The main issues for consideration in this case are:
a) The principle of the proposal in the Town Centre and whether it would maintain
the vitality and viability of the Town Centre;
b) The impact on neighbouring amenities with regard to noise and odour nuisance,
general disturbance from activities including comings and goings to the premises,
the potential for litter, concerns over the potential for anti-social behaviour; and
c) Highway safety.
Principle of Development
The government is committed to ensuring that the planning system does everything it
can to support sustainable economic growth. Significant weight should be placed on the
need to support economic growth through the planning system. The NPPF sets out the
core planning principles which should underpin decisions and notes that planning should,
amongst other matters, proactively drive and support sustainable economic development
to deliver the homes, business and industrial units, infrastructure and thriving local places
that the country needs. Every effort should be made objectively to identify and then meet
the development needs of an area and respond positively to wider opportunities for
growth.
Vitality and Viability
Prior to the 2005 use class amendment there was no A4 and A5 use classes and the A3
use class included what is now these two additional A class uses. In this context the
proposed lawful use for the host site is for an A3 which included and operated a
takeaway as a part of the business. Since 2005 planning permission is required for a
change of use from an A3 use to an A4 (or as in this case) an A5 use.
The site falls within a primary retail frontage (Loughton High Road) and as such policy E2
(Centre Hierarchy/Retail Policy) is applicable. The policy states that within defined
Primary Retail Frontage ground floor units will be maintained in A1 Class Uses in
accordance with Policies P1 to P5. Proposals that would not result in a reduction in the
specified percentage of A1 Class Uses will be permitted for other main town centre uses
where this would support the function, vitality or viability of the Town or District Centre
and maintain an active daytime frontage.

Page 42

Notwithstanding the above, the proposal would not result in the loss of an A1 unit given
the existing A3 classification of the property and as such existing ground floor A1
coverage within the town centre will be maintained in compliance with Policy E2 of the
LPSV 2017.
The proposal is for an A5 use of the Planning use classes order 1987 (as amended) (Hot
food takeaway establishments). Concern has been raised by objectors that the use
would give rise to a higher level of vehicle traffic including the use of motor bikes for
deliveries, particularly late at night. The previous use included a takeaway operation, and
as such, this element of the proposal is not inconsistent with the existing established use
of the site, which had been in existence for at least 26 years. This type of use would not
be out of character with the shopping area and, as noted above, the proposal would not
result in a loss of existing retail floorspace.
Furthermore, the proposal would generate footfall, maintain the diversity, vitality and
viability of the town centre, and complement existing A1 uses. With regard to traffic
generation, there is no quantifiable evidence that the use would give rise to an increase
in traffic in the area. Parking on the main road is controlled and there is a car park to the
rear offering a limited number of spaces that is available for general town centre use. The
limited scale of the development, and the fact that it does not provide for seated meals,
would most likely suggest that it would be more attractive to non-car users. The proposal
therefore is in compliance with policy E2 of the LPSV 2017.
With regard to the opening hours proposed, other existing A3/A5 uses on Loughton High
Road are open till late (listed below);









Wildwood open till 11pm Friday and Saturdays;
Pizza Express open till 11:30pm Friday and Saturdays;
The olive tree open till midnight Friday and Saturdays;
Wo Fat restaurant open till midnight Friday and Saturdays;
Turquois Grill & Bar open till 12:30am Fridays and Saturdays;
Loughton Chilli open till 11pm (Every day);
KFC open till 11pm every day; and
Papa John’s Pizza open till midnight (Monday to Saturday).

Therefore, it is considered that the proposed opening hours are acceptable and will
ensure that there is an active frontage that contributes to the night time economy as well
as the day time economy, thereby enhancing the vitality and viability of the Town Centre,
in line with Paragraph 85 of the National Planning Policy Framework.
The end user (McDonalds) has stated that they would employ approx. 65 Full-time and
Part-time staff from the local community (35 full time and 30 part time) and provide
training/qualifications for them in the form of apprenticeships and degrees. The benefits
of this increase in the local job offer has to be weighed in the balance, in fulfilling one of
the aims of the NPPF, and the further opportunities as a spin off from being employed by
McDonald’s as part of their national agenda for working with and to the benefit of local
communities.
As such it is considered that there will be significant Socio-economic benefits to
Loughton and the District as whole, in addition to ensuring that the residents from the
local communities are equipped with the necessary skills and qualifications for
challenging situations and/or opportunities in life, particularly having access to the job
market. This is given significant weight in the Framework as set out in Paragraph 80 and
91 - the main objective to building a strong and competitive economy and healthy and
safe communities.

Page 43

Neighbouring amenities in terms of litter, noise, smell and anti-social behaviour
Residents have raised several issues around litter, anti-social behaviour and noise and
smell disturbance matters which are capable of control through other powers. While
noting these concerns raised by residents, concerns in relation to anti-social behaviour
cannot be taken into account as there is currently no basis for these in relation to a
McDonalds in the local area. While anti-social behaviour can be an issue where groups
of individuals are more likely to gather (although there is no reason to presume groups
would gather), it is a matter for law enforcement to control this. In Town Centres existing
procedures through Town centre Management Programmes are normally in place where
the Council, local police and business operators work together through co-operative
working arrangements.
In this respect, the end user in planning terms is not a material consideration; however, it
is noted that due to business scale and reputation, the applicant (McDonalds) has sought
to address these as follows:
Paragraph 95 of the Framework states that planning policies and decisions should
promote public safety and take into account wider security and defence requirements by:
a) anticipating and addressing possible malicious threats and natural hazards,
especially in locations where large numbers of people are expected to
congregate.
Due to business scale and reputation of the end user (McDonalds) it is likely to attract
large numbers of customers, in particular young people that are statistically more likely to
result in increased anti-social behaviour and noise disturbance. To address this the
application is supported by the statement below which outlines McDonalds approach in
ensuring public safety and security;
All managers receive bespoke McDonald’s Conflict Management training
programme, provided by MAYBO the leading UK provider for such courses
according to the Security Industry Authority (SIA). McDonald’s have working
directly with MAYBO for over 15 years, to ensure all managers receive the most
up to date training available for the business, whilst remaining flexible in the areas
it covers to deal with any emerging issues.
All new restaurants are equipped with a state-of-the-art HD IP CCTV system,
which covers both inside and outside the restaurant. We are happy for further
details of this to be conditioned and can provide details of cameras to the front,
rear and within the building.
StaffSafe AV is installed in all new restaurants. This is a comprehensive audiovisual monitoring system, designed to prevent crime and disorder issues by
intervening through the use of the restaurant’s CCTV and sound system. It
allows, crew and managers to deal with situations whilst a remote monitoring
control room can call for emergency services as required. It has been shown to
reduce ASB issues in restaurants by up to 80%. It also has the added advantage
it be adapted to monitor Intruder Alarms systems overnight at non 24/7
restaurants (which this will be), speaking to suspects they can see trying to breakin and telling them we are calling the police, thus preventing a burglary before it
occurs.
Additional features are utilised across the portfolio to avoid any loitering or large
groups. Active management techniques include turning the free Wi-Fi off and
turning charging points off so people cannot charge their phones. In addition, the

Page 44

use of classical music is employed which also helps.
On occasions to deal with more serious or prolonged issues, restaurants will on a
risk assessed basis, employ SIA approved guards from companies approved by
the SIA. This work is often linked to the use of Incident Logs to record issues, use
of Body worn video cameras by guards to record incidents, banning enforcement
and any other security measures deemed necessary. This is purely done on a
case by case basis, if required.
In terms of concerns regarding litter, planning permission cannot be reasonably refused
for litter impact. The impact of litter outside of the application site is controlled specifically
under the Environmental Protection Act 1990 Part IV, rather than through planning
legislation or policy. The planning application however is supported by a Litter
Management Plan which indicates that it is company policy to conduct a minimum of 3
daily litter patrols, whereby employees pick up not only McDonald’s packaging but also
any other litter that may have been discarded in a 100m vicinity of the restaurant. The
applicant has stated that this can be expanded to suit local needs.
McDonalds is also a founding member of Keep Britain Tidy’s Love where you Live antilittering campaign. The company organises regular clean up events in local communities
and raises awareness of the anti-littering message through its 1,280 UK restaurant’s.
This has seen McDonalds carry out over 3,000 events across the country involving over
50,000 volunteers. Individual restaurants also undertake their own anti-littering initiatives,
such as litter picking sessions in local parks and open spaces with local community
groups.
With regards to any noise and smells generated by the operation, it should be noted that
two flues currently exist which provide for fume extraction and smell mitigation for the
previous use. These are older types of flue and are not screened from the adjoining
residential properties. With regard to the current proposal, a high-quality air extraction &
ventilation system is proposed to be located to the roof of the two-storey rear element
with a 2-metre aluminium solid panel surround to the plant and duct. The system is rated
at the highest level for mitigating noise and smells and the panel would both screen the
plant from views and provide additional insulation. At first floor level to the rear, the plant
to the roof of the single storey element would be screened from the staircase and the car
park by a solid brick wall.
The details and drawings set out in the applicant’s noise and extraction system reports,
which also include any potential impact on the nearest residential receptor (202a High
Road), was previously found to be acceptable to the Councils Environmental Health team
and subsequently approved under EPF/1622/19. The Environmental Health Team have
provided no additional comments within the scope of this application as the details are
the same as previously proposed and accepted, however it is considered reasonable to
condition the above details to ensure that the development is carried out in accordance
with the approved documents and plans.
Highway Safety
Residents have raised concerns that the proposal would result in harm to highway safety,
highway congestion and parking problems.
Members need to consider whether the proposal would have a severe impact on the
highway network. It is officer advice that the impact would not be severe, and that
parking is limited to the front with controlled parking hours and any delivery vehicles can
use the existing service/parking area to the rear of the building.

Page 45

Highway and amenity concerns have been raised earlier in this report. In further
addressing this point, the applicant has provided additional information about the
operation which includes data provided by their highway consultants ADL. It should be
noted that deliveries would be provided by Uber Eats.
The car park to the rear is a 24/7 public car park and can be expected to be used by
frequenters of the High Street at all hours. A group of people may go to the Last Post
until 11pm and then return to their car. Regardless of this, the vast majority of delivery
drivers will park to the front and enter the store, using the path of least resistance. They
will not want to pay to park to the rear when they can easily park in the designated
parking spaces to the main road. It is also noted that car parking on the High Street is
free between 8am – 9:30am and 5pm – 11pm, therefore an Uber Eats driver is unlikely to
want to pay to park to the rear further away when they could park closer for free.
Uber Eats Operation
Delivery Radius
McDelivery covers an area up to 1.5-mile radius from the store. Deliveries are
undertaken by Uber Eats couriers who are predominantly on bicycles and scooters.
Customer Procedure
Customers use the Uber Eats App on a smartphone or tablet to place their order. The
customer can choose which restaurant they want to place their order at, based on
delivery time or star rating (out of 5 stars). The customer places their order and pays via
the App.
Restaurant Procedure
Once the customer has placed the order via the App, the order is received at the
McDonald’s restaurant onto a tablet which is auto accepted. A courier is dispatched to
the restaurant. The restaurant is alerted when the courier is 3 minutes from the store.
The order is then recalled on the till system and preparation commences. The order is
assembled when all items are ready. Condiments are added and the order is checked for
accuracy.
Delivery Procedure
The courier enters the restaurant via High Road only via the dedicated courier entrance
(the partitioned area to the ground floor plan). The McDelivery bags are sealed and are
handed to the courier across the dedicated courier counter. The courier leaves the
restaurant and heads to the customer’s destination where the food is delivered.
Only one Uber order is taken per delivery by the courier.
Trip Generation
McDonald’s have provided hourly Uber Eats transaction data from 77 instore restaurants
all located within the M25. This data has been provided for a typical Friday, Saturday and
Sunday. ADL (Traffic Consultants) have taken an average of all 77 sites to provide an
hourly profile of Uber Eats deliveries for the proposed restaurant. The results are
summarised in Table A below for the proposed hours of opening 08:00-23:00 hours.

Page 46

Uber Eats have advised that based on a sample of London instore restaurants 60% of
deliveries would be undertaken by a bicycle courier and 40% by moped couriers. The
expected trip numbers have therefore been split by mode accordingly as shown in Table
A.
Table A
Time
08:00
09:00
10:00
11:00
12:00
13:00
14:00
15:00
16:00
17:00
18:00
19:00
20:00
21:00
22:00

Proposed Uber Eats Trips

Total
Trips
7
14
9
10
11
9
10
11
14
17
22
21
21
18
15

Friday
Pedal
Cycles
4
8
5
6
7
5
6
7
8
10
13
13
13
11
9

Mopeds
3
6
4
4
4
4
4
4
6
7
9
8
8
7
6

Total
Trips
10
20
15
12
16
16
15
12
13
15
17
19
17
16
15

Saturday
Pedal
Mopeds
Cycles
6
4
12
8
9
6
7
5
10
6
10
6
9
6
7
5
8
5
9
6
10
7
11
8
10
7
10
6
9
6

Total
Trips
9
20
16
13
16
16
14
13
13
15
17
19
20
17
13

Sunday
Pedal
Cycles
5
12
10
8
10
10
8
8
8
9
10
11
12
10
8

Mopeds
4
8
6
5
6
6
6
5
5
6
7
8
8
7
5

Table A - Demonstrates that the typical peaks for deliveries would be:
Friday

18:00 hours

22 deliveries

13 cycles, 9 mopeds

Saturday

09:00 hours

20 deliveries

12 cycles, 8 mopeds

Sunday

09:00 hours

20 deliveries

12 cycles, 8 mopeds

There would be 1 cycle every 6 minutes during the busiest periods and 1 moped every 89 minutes. There are existing motorcycle bays located on High Road. The courier
duration of stay on-site should therefore be very low. It is expected that this would be 1-2
minutes including time taken to park their bicycle/scooter, walk to the entrance, collect
the food and go back to their bicycle/scooter. There would likely be only one cycle and
one moped at the restaurant at any one time.
Other considerations
The Town Council have raised concerns regarding the impact to the Epping Forest
Special Area of Conservation, however members should note that any impact to the
EFSAC is restricted to new dwellings and commercial units. Also, in terms of Healthy
Eating, there is no evidence of any high obesity levels within the district that justifies
refusing the application on this ground. Furthermore, McDonalds offer a range of lower
calorie options and nutritional information is normally accessible in store, which enables
an individual to identify and purchase food items and combinations that fit in with their
individualised calorie or nutritional requirements. Therefore, there is no evidence to
substantiate that the proposal would have an adverse effect upon the health and wellbeing of local residents, particularly given the availability of healthier menu choices.

Page 47

Conclusion
In broad planning terms, the proposal seeks to provide an active frontage, whilst
supporting the Framework’s objectives of building a strong, competitive economy,
proving a healthy safe community and ensuring the vitality and viability of the Town
Centre.
For the reasons set out above having regard to all the matters raised, it is recommended
that conditional planning permission be granted.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the
following contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:
Planning Application Case Officer: Muhammad Rahman
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564415
or if no direct contact can be made please email:
contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 48

Appendix 1

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

Epping Forest District Council

EFDC
65

59
57

49.7m

51

48.5m
35
31

21
17

ath
ill P
sH
ple
Sta

15

11

44.2m
7
5
E'S

AD
RO

89

S

40.2m

PL
TA

East Lodge

39.6m

2

Sluice

y
Bd

3

rd
Wa

West Lodge
4
10

Y
UR
SB
TE
AF
SH

79

94

10

71

1

14

37.5m
67

24

13

82

15
E
TH

1t
o
Fo 6
re
Co st
ur
t

Bdy

14
5

70

18
6a
a

EFDC
34

RO
AD

21

T

nd
b

FO
RE
S

15
5

39.6m

E
IV
DR

66

13
5

36

17
4

Application Number:

EPF/2486/19

Site Name:

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

Scale of Plot:

5 Staples Road Loughton
IG10 1HP
1:1250

12
5

Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.
16
4

ED & Ward

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 51

APPLICATION No:

EPF/2486/19

SITE ADDRESS:

5 Staples Road
Loughton
IG10 1HP

PARISH:

Loughton

WARD:

Loughton St Marys

APPLICANT:

Mr Matthew Wood

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Ground and lower ground floor rear renovation and
extension.

RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=629415

CONDITIONS
1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2

The development hereby permitted will be completed and retained strictly in
accordance with the approved drawings numbers: EO.1, EO.2, EO.09, E1.0, E1.3,
E2.0, PO.2, PO.09, P1.0, P2.0 and P3.4

3

Samples of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to their use on site. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. For
the purposes of this condition, the samples shall only be made available for
inspection by the Local Planning Authority at the planning application site itself.

4

The development hereby approved shall not be implemented until a Basement
Impact Assessment is submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in
writing, prior to the commencement of the development. The development shall be
implemented in accordance with any agreed recommendations.

5

Prior to preliminary ground works taking place, details of surface water disposal shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

6

All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

7

Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during
construction works shall be installed and utilised to clean vehicles immediately
before leaving the site. Any mud or other material deposited on nearby roads as a
result of the development shall be removed.

Page 52

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval
contrary to an objection from a Local Council and at least one non-councillor resident, on
planning grounds material to the application (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part 3: Scheme
of Delegation to Officers from Full Council).
Site and Surrounding
The site is a four story detached house located in Staples Road Conservation area. The
building is not listed but is recognised as a ‘Key Building of Townscape Merit’ in the
Staples Road Conservation Area Character Appraisal. The neighbouring properties at
Forest Villa, 7 Staples Road and Shaftsbury Retreat House, 3 Staples Road are Locally
Listed Buildings. The site is not a listed building; but is located within the Staples Road
Conservation Area.
Description of proposal:
Planning permission is sought for a single storey ground and lower ground rear
extension this measures 4.2m deep, 9,2m wide at lower ground level reducing to 4.1m
wide at ground floor level, 4.5m high (with flat roof) at ground floor level, reducing to 2.5m
(at lower ground floor) with a flat roof. Proposal includes an outdoor extension extending
2.0m deep (from proposed lower ground floor, 2.0m in high and 5.2m wide. Other rear
alterations include an increase in the width of the balcony from 2.2m wide to 3.7m,
increase of the rear first floor window and a new side access door.
Relevant History:
EPF/0841/94 Two storey rear and first floor side extension- Granted
Relevant Policies:
Development Plan Context
Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006)
Section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning
applications should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan currently comprises
the Epping Forest District Council Adopted Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006).
The following policies within the current Development Plan are considered to be of
relevance to this application:
CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
DBE9 – Loss of amenity
DBE10 - Design of Residential Extensions
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019)
The revised NPPF is a material consideration in determining planning applications. As with
its predecessor, the presumption in favour of sustainable development remains at the
heart of the NPPF. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF provides that for determining planning
applications this means either;
a) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or

Page 53

b) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission
unless:
i.
the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or
ii.
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF
taken as a whole
The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory
status of the development plan as the starting point for decision making, but policies within
the development plan need to be considered and applied in terms of their degree of
consistency with the Framework.
Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version (LPSV) (2017)
Although the LPSV does not currently form part of the statutory development plan for the
district, on 14th December 2017 the Council resolved that the LPSV be endorsed as a
material consideration to be used in the determination of planning applications.
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF provides that decision-takers may give weight to relevant
policies in emerging plans according to:




The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation,
the greater the weight that may be given);
The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given);
and
The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the NPPF (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in
the NPPF, the greater the weight that may be given).

The LPSV has been submitted for Independent Examination and hearing sessions were
held on various dates from February 2019 to June 2019. On the 2nd August, the appointed
inspector provided her interim advice to the Council covering the substantive matters
raised at the hearing and the necessary actions required of the Council to enable her to
address issues of soundness with the plan without prejudice to her final conclusions.
The following policies in the LPSV are considered to be of relevance to the determination
of this application, with the weight afforded by your officers in this particular case indicated:
DM9 – High Quality Design
DM10 – Housing Design and Quality
Summary of Consultations and Representations
Conservation Officer:- The existing rear extension does not complement the existing
house. The style of the proposed extension with a flat roof is considered to be acceptable.
The finishes of the extension will achieve a quality scheme. The top of the extension has
been finished with parapet walls to conceal the roof. No fascia/soffits would be visible.
Parish Council: - Objects on the grounds that this would be out of keeping with the
property, which is in the Staples Road Conservation Area. Members are concerned the
proposal has the potential to cause flood risk to neighbouring properties. The committee
believes that it would be unsafe and unsound to grant this application, by virtue of the

Page 54

increase of cubic capacity of this building and the possible greater number of occupants
living there. A member of the committee would not be willing to attend Committee having
nothing further to add.
Loughton Residents Association: - We object to this application. The proposed
extension is wholly out of keeping with this style of property and the Staples Road
Conservation Area. It will impact on the setting of the adjacent locally listed buildings and
the amount of glazing would have a detrimental visual impact on the setting of the
buildings particularly in the evening when the lights are on. If the District Council is minded
to approve the application we ask for conditions as follows: Materials to match existing and
a Flood risk assessment.
Occupiers of Forest Villa 7 Staples Rd:- Although the alterations proposed are relatively
minor, we are worried about the planned changes of level. The area proposed to be
excavated by about 5ft has been flooded 3 times in the last 20 years from endemic failure
of Thames Water infrastructure, and construction of a living space there will deviate the
course of any future water ingress. These plans would probably also transfer much of the
activity of the household at no. 5 right over to our side of the house, especially because of
the insertion of a new exterior door into the narrow side passage, which is currently
unused. We do also question whether the shape and appearance of the cube-like
extension with metal windows is congruent with its situation between two locally listed
buildings, and should be attached to a building of townscape merit, where the backs of the
houses are visible when looking into the conservation area from adjacent gardens.
Intensification of use directly opposite the Special Area of Conservation might also be
undesirable.
Planning Considerations:
The main issues arising from this proposal relate to the design, appearance and impacts
on the Conservation Area and Impact on the amenity of neighbouring residents.

The proposed design would not have any detrimental impact on the appearance of the
dwelling as it would integrate with the host building in terms of the design and size.
The proposed extension would be entirely contained to the rear of the property and not
visible from Stables Road. The proposed extension would be in keeping with the
character and appearance of the property and would not detract from the Staples
Road Conservation Area.
There is currently a ground and lower ground floor extension that does not complement
the existing house. The proposal would increase the depth of the extension at ground
floor by 0.6m and the lower ground floor by 4.0m (including the outdoor enclosure).
The lower ground floor extension would be located 1.5m from the boundary with no. 7,
however due to the set forward position of the no.7 from no.8, There would ne no harm
to the amenities of neighbouring occupiers in terms of outlook, light or privacy. The
proposal would be located 7m from the flank wall of no.3 and due to same increase in
depth to this side of the extension there would be no impact on the amenities enjoyed
by the occupiers of no.3.
The style of the proposed extension with a flat roof is considered to be acceptable by the
Conservation Officer. The finishes of the extension will achieve a quality scheme and the
top of the extension has been finished with parapet walls to conceal the roof.
The residential properties to the south would be able to view the extension, but
nonetheless the new extension would not be considered significantly more harmful than
that which exists presently due to windows located on the rear elevation. The proposed

Page 55

addition in a relatively constrained setting is not considered to adversely impact
neighbours in terms of loss of light or cause an increase sense of enclosure or loss of
outlook.
Response to Objections:The site is not located within a Flood Zone and therefore it would be unreasonable to
request a flood zone assessment. The flood stream nearest to the site is 70m south west
of the site. However, due to the excavation of the lower ground floor a Basement Impact
Assessment will be required and can be conditioned to ensure that the development does
not give to rise to ground water flooding in the surrounding area.
Conclusion:
The proposed extension is considered to preserve and enhance the character and setting
of the Conservation Area and is visually acceptable within the character and appearance
of the wider area. The proposed development is not considered to result in any significant
harm to neighbouring amenity and therefore would comply with the relevant policies
contained within the adopted Local Plan, the Epping Forest District Local Plan
(Submission Version), and the guidance contained within the NPPF.
It is recommended that planning permission be Granted subject to conditions.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:
Planning Application Case Officer: Natalie Price
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564718

or if no direct contact can be made please email:
contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 56

Agenda Item 14

Page 57

Page 58

